#### T.R.N.C



## **NEAR EAST UNIVERSTY**

## INSTITUTE OF GRADUATE STUDIES

## DEPARTEMENT OF PYSCHOLOGICAL COUNSELLING AND GUIDANCE

# DIFFERENCE IN PERCEIVED STRESS LEVEL AS FUNCTION OF ACADEMIC FIELD OF STUDY IN NORTH CYPRUS

## MASTER'S DEGREE OF PSYCHOLOGICAL COUNSELING AND GUIDANCE

JARA ELAMA HEDE

**SUPERVISOR** 

ASSOC. PROF. DR. YA MUR ÇERKEZ

**NICOSIA** 

**JANUARY, 2021** 

## **Approvals**

We certify that we have read thesis submitted by JaraElemaHedetitled **Difference in perceived** stress level as function academic field of study in North Cyprus and that in our combined opinion it is usefully adequate, in scope and in quality, as a thesis for the degree of MastersPsychological Counseling and Guidance.

## JURY MEMBERS

Name –surname Signature	
Assoc. Prof. Dr. Ya murÇerkez(Supervisor)	
Assist. Prof. Dr. GizemÖneriUzun	
Assoc. Prof. Dr. IpekDanju	
Approved by the Institute of Creducte Studies	
Approved by the Institute of Graduate Studies	
	/2021

Prof.Dr. Hüsnü Can Ba er

Head of Institute of Graduate Studies

## T.R.N.C



## **NEAR EAST UNIVERSTY**

## INSTITUTE OF GRADUATE STUDIES

## DEPARTEMENT OF PYSCHOLOGICAL COUNSELLING AND GUIDANCE

# DIFFERENCE IN PERCEIVED STRESS LEVEL AS FUNCTION OF ACADEMIC FIELDS OF STUDY IN NORTH CYPRUS

## MASTER'S DEGREE OF PSYCHOLOGICAL COUNSELINGAND GUIDANCE

**JARA ELAMA HEDE** 

**NICOSIA** 

**JANUARY, 2021** 

## **DECLARATION**

I hereby declare that all information, documents, analysis and results in this thesis have been collected and presented according to the academic rules and ethical guidelines of Graduate School of Educational Sciences, Near East University. I also declare that as required by these rules conduct, I have fully cited and referenced information and data that are not original to this study.

Name, JaraElemaHede

Signature

Date 25, 1, 2021

## **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT**

In the first and foremost, I am earnestly great full to my almighty God. Who helped me to begin and completed my study successfully. In course of doing this research I have benefitted from the support and encouragement of many people. I am very grateful to all of them. I would in particular like to express my utmost gratitude to my advisor Associate. Prof.Dr.YagmurCerkez who guided me the research dutifully from beginning to end, corrected my errors, and miss steps every step of the way. I have learnt from here criticisms and befitted from here suggestions immensely. Without exaggeration, the diligence and the sense of professional responsibility with which she guided my work was exemplary and I deal. I am truly thankful to all of my instructors and fellow students at Near East University.

To my parents...

#### **ABSTRACT**

Difference in Perceived Stress Level as Function Academic Field of Study in North Cyprus

#### JaraElemaHede

Master's Degree of Psychological Counseling and Guidance

Supervisor Assoc. Prof. Dr. Ya murÇerkez

January, 2021 42 pages

Stress is a universal problem that, everyone can face at some point in our daily lives. Students are a unique group of individuals who face stress at certain point of academic lifetime. The aim of this study was to assess the difference in the extent of stress as function of academic field of study by comparing students in different departments. Comparative descriptive approach with inferential statistics and random sampling method where used as tool of study. Data has been collected by using questioner. The research data where analyzed quantitativelyusing statical package for social sciences. Medical students, Civil engineering, English language, Architecture, International relations and tourism management students report a high level of perceived stress level. The studyresult shows that there is no statistical difference in perceived stress level among different academic field of students. This indicates that different academic field of students experience almost the samelevel of stress. The finding of study indicate that academic of study has low effect on the perceived stress level of students; environmental source of stress were most common stressors in the seven different department study and intrapersonal stressors were the least source of stress among the seven department students. The researcher therefore recommends that, implementation of comprehensive stress management program as most of students experience high level of perceived stress and university administration; counselors need to explore strategies to improve the campus environment.

**Key words:** Academic stress; perceived stress levels; stress; stressors

## ÖZET

KuzeyKıbrıs'taAlgılananStresDüzeyininAkademikÇalı maAlanıÜzerindekiEtkisinin ncelenmesi

JaraElemaHede

## PsikolojikDanı manlıkveRehberlikYüksekLisansProgramı

Danı man:Doç. Dr. Ya murÇerkez

Ocak 2021, 42 sayfa

Bu çalı manınamacı, farklıbölümlerdekiö rencilerikar ıla tırarakakademikçalı maalanınınbiri leviolarakstresinkapsa mındakifarklılı ide erlendirmektir. Çıkarımsalistatistiklerlekar ıla tırmalıtanımlayıcıyakla ımveçalı maaracıolarakkullanıldı ındara stgeleörneklemeyöntemi. Verilersorgulayıcıkullanılaraktoplanmı tır. Sosyalbilimleriçinstatikpaketkullanılaraknicelolarakanalizedilenara tırmaverileri. Tıpö rencileri, n aatmühendisli i, ngilizce, Mimarlık, Uluslararasıili kilerveturizmyönetimiö rencileri, yüksekdüzeydealgılananstresseviyesibildiriyorlar. Ara tırmasonucu, fark ö rencilerinfarklıakademikalanlarıarasındaalgılananstresdüzeyindeistatistikselbir olmadı ınıgöstermektedir. Bu. ö rencilerinfarklıakademikalanlarınınneredeyseaynıdüzeydestresya adı ınıgöstermektedir. Ara tırmabulgusu, akademikçalı malarınö rencilerinalgılananstresdüzeyiüzerindedü üketkiyesahipoldu unu; Çevreselstreskayna ıyedifarklıbölümçalı masındaenyaygınstresfaktörüydüveiçselstresfaktörleriy

Bu

nedenleara tırmacı,

danı manlarınkampüsortamınıiyile tirmekiçinstratejilerke fetmesigerekir.

edibölümö rencisiarasındaenazstreskayna ıydı.

etimiprogramınınuygulanmasını;

Anahtarsözcükler: Akademikstres; algılananstresseviyeleri; stres; stresfaktörleri

ö rencilerinço uyüksekdüzeydealgılananstresveüniversiteyönetimiya adı ıiçinkapsamlıstresyön

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	ii
ABSTRACT	iv
ÖZET	V
LIST OF TABLE	viii
CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Statement of Problem	1
1.2 Research Questions	2
1.3 Purpose of the study	3
1.4 Significance of the study	3
1.5 Definition of key Terms	4
1.6 Limitations of the study	3
CHAPTER 2: Literature Review	5
2.2 Stress	5
2.1.1 Definition of stress	5
2.1.2 The effect of stress	7
2.3. Stress in University Students	10
2.2.1 Interpersonal/Social sources of stress	12
2.2.2 Intrapersonal/Self sources of stress	13
2.2.3. Academic sources of stress	13
2.2.4. Environmental/Campus sources of stress	14
2.4. Academic field of study and stress	14
CHAPTER 3: METHODOLOGY	16
3.1. Research Design	16

REFERENCE	35
5.2 Recommendation	33
5.1 Summary	32
CHAPTER 5: SUMMARY CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION	32
4.4 Discussion	26
4.3. Perceived stress scale (PSS)	25
4.2.7 Department of Architecture	22
4.2.6 Department of Tourism and Hotel Management	22
4.2.5 Department of Medicine	22
4.2.4 Department of law	22
4.2.3 Department International Relation	21
4.2.2 Department of civil Engineering	21
4.2.1 Department of English language and literature	21
4.2 Survey on source of stress	
4.1 General characteristics of the participants	
CHAPTER 4: RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS	
3.5. Data analysis method	
3.4. Procedure for Data Collection	18
3.3. Data collection instrument	17
3.2. Sampling Techniques	16

## LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. Source of stress: mean score for seven departments in each item.	. 24
Table 2: source of stress survey: Mean scores for seven departments in four cluster group of stressors	. 25
Table 3: PSS among seven-department student	. 26
Table 4: Analysis of variance data for perceived stress scale.	. 28
Table 5: Source of stress survey: Mean scores for four departments in each item	.30
Table 6: Source of stress survey: Mean scores for seven departments in four cluster group of stressor	.31

#### **CHAPTER 1:INTRODUCTION**

#### 1.1 Statement of Problem

Stress is the body's reaction to a change that involves a physical, mental or emotional adjustment. Stress can come from any situation or thought that create a state of tension or treat and requires change or adaptation, which is called "stressor". Stressor could also be events that the individual perceive endangering his or her physical and psychological well-being (Cohen, Kessler & underwood-Gordon 1997).

Stress is a common problem that, all of us face at some point in our lives. We generally use the word "stress" when we feel that everything seems to have become too much - we are overloaded and wonder whether we really can cope with the pressures placed upon us. Although stress can be challenging and have certain health risks, an optimal level of stress is also useful to a certain degree (Selye,1976) which is characterized by high energy, mental alertness, high motivation, calmness under pressure, thorough analysis of problems, improved memory and recall, sharp perception, and a generally optimistic outlook (Rachel, 2004). The famous researcher in stress(Hans and Seyle, 1976) said, "To be totally without stress is to be dead". It is, therefore, an essential part of life and any normal individual exercises a reasonable amount of stress.

Everyone experiences stress at times — adults, teens, and even kids;but the stress level differs across population (Morgan, 1986). College students are more prone to stress which can be explained by environmental and individual factors. Among these college students, stress has been linked to substance abuse, lower self-esteem, academic problems, depression, and many other ailments. American College Health Association (2004) conducted a lot of national survey to assess the impact of stress on college students. The findings show that almost half reported being so depressed that they had difficulty functioning, and almost all reported feeling overwhelmed by the variety and number of tasks they had to do. Students use harmful health behaviors as a means to manage stress, such as binge drinking, substance abuse, and risky sexual activity (Weschler, Lee, Kuo, Nelson, & Lee, 2000; Kelly, Rollings, & Harmon, 2005).

Many other risk behaviors are endemic to college-aged students, since college students often feel stress from being overpressure due to academic, social, and financial pressures, they may turn to substance abuse to alleviate the stress. As a result of the harmful consequences of stress in this population, a lot of research have been conducted on the source and coping mechanism of stress in university students. However, it has been widely recognized that so farthere is inconsistency in the research findings across different universities. So, further research seems essential.

Comparing people according to certain variables is part human behavior(Fiske, Gilbert, &Lindzey, 2010). This research will also be conducted from comparative perspective to show if there is significant differences among students in different academic units related to the level of stress they experience. In addition to this, from established beliefs and personal experience, differences across different faculty students are prevalent in various ways. For examplethe method of teaching learning, style of studying and academic life. These facts haveprompted the requirement to conduct further research on the comparison of the level of stress in different faculty students is important.

Therefore, the issue of determining whether there are differences in stress level among students in different academic fields of study is an issue that needs investigation, particularly in identifying which department or faculty students are more prone to high stress and identifying the common stressors among students in different academic fields of study.

## 1.2 Research Question

With the aim of comparing the perceived stress level among students of different fields of study, the following leading research questions are formulated.

- 1. Is there statistically significant difference between among students in different academic fields of study in perceived stress level?
- 2. What are the common stressors among students in different academic fields of study?
- 3. Are there specific stressors that are more prevalent among students in specific field of study than other fields of study?

## 1.3Purpose of the study

The overall objective of this study is to investigate the differences in the extent of stress as a function of academic fields of study by comparing students in different faculties.

From this general objective, this research has the following specific objectives.

- No assess the prevalence of stress among Near East University undergraduate students, both native and international, at different academic fields of study.
- N To compare perceived stress level of students in different faculties encountered because of their individual status.
- N To investigate the common sources of stress among students in different faculty
- N To investigate specific stressors which are more prevalent in certain faculty students than others

## 1.4Significance of the study

The study will have both theoretical and practical importance. Theoretically, the research findings will provide necessary empirical evidence about the influence of academic field of study on stress. The findings are also expected to have practical implication in contributing ideas that are directed towards helping university students.

Firstly, students in various faculties will be benefited because understanding the current stressors faced by university students, particularly those included on the study, is a crucial step in taking action to minimize stress. It is also helpful for the University administration to maintain a well-balanced academic environment conducive for better learning, with the focus on the students' personal needs.

Additionally, it helps teachers and counselors to recognize the main sources of students stress and the influence academic field of study has on stress. Such knowledge enables them to take various measures to help students. It also enables other related bodies and the students themselves to be aware of the reality and take necessary action relevant to the conditions.

## 1.5Definition of key Terms

- N Academic stress: Mental and emotional pressure, stress that occurs due to the demands of college life (Angola and Ongori, 2009).
- Nerceived stress levels: the awareness or consideration of life events as stressful events (Cohen, Kessler Underwood -Gordon, 1997, pp 3).
- N Stress: Will be defined according to a definition by Lazarus and Folkman (1984), as a condition or feeling experienced when a person perceives that "demands exceed the personal and social resources the individual is able to mobilize."
- N Stressors: the source or factors causing stress, or the stressful events or condition, such as workload, conflict, noise etc.

## 1.6 Limitation of the study

This study takes place at one university in North Cyprus, which will affect the generalizability to other institutions. Consequently, the results will only be applicable to similar institutions in similar settings. The study was limited to undergraduate students; will not address postgraduate students and other students. The study does not take into account faculty characteristics or teaching styles, which could have an effect on students perceived stress levels.

#### **CHAPTER 2:Literature Review**

Researchers have often addressed perceptions of stress and the effects of these perceptions have on college students. Review of the related literature give the general view of the research conducted. The first part of the review will deal with the definition and different concept of stress. What do we mean by stress? What are common consequences of stress? The second part of review will summarize with source of stress. The final part of the review will show the research findings on the impact of academic field of study on student's level of stress.

#### 2.2 Stress

#### 2.1.1 Definition of stress

The word stress means different things to different people. Some people define stress as events or situations that cause them to feel tension, pressure, or negative emotions such as anxiety and anger. Others view stress as the response to these situations. This response includes physiological changes-such as increased heart rate and muscle tension-as well as emotional and behavioral changes. However, most psychologists regard stress as a process involving a person's interpretation and response to a threatening event(Marks et al., 2000).

The first type of definition of stress concentrates on the physical and psychological feeling of "being stressed" or "completely stressed out" with symptoms such as anxiety, poor concentration, insomnia, tension and fatigue. Theorists who develop response models of stress (Marks et al., 2000) take this position. (Hans and Selye 1950), who defines stress for the first time, supports the response model of stress.

The definition of stress used by (Selye 1976) is "the non-specific response of the body to any demand". Selye's theory supports that some stress is necessary to maintain life, but if the non-specific response places increased demands for adaptation, the effects on the individual may be damaging or excessive. In his formulation in the stress of life, Selye pointed to stressors as being

stimuli, which, because of their great magnitude, lead to the reaction he termed the General Adaptation Syndrome. Conversely a person who manifests this syndrome is presumed to be in a state of stress (Burgess, Lana. 2017).

A second type of definition of stress focus on the situation, or the stimuli, defined independently of the reaction the person, even independently of the person's perceptions. Stress, while considered as stimulus, is defined as environmental event, the force, or stimulus acting on an individual that results in response of strain, where strain is pressure or deformation. It shows events external to the organism that put demands on it; the definition of stress in terms of response implies the organism's response to the events that challenge it (Corsini, 2002).

The third approach, the interactive, exemplified in the formulations of Lazarus (1976), and French (1973), goes even further in considering the individual's own response in dealing with a taxing situation. French have formulated this approach in its most general form as a poor fit between an individual's resources and the demands of one's environment. One extreme type of poor fit occurs when the demands of a situation may so undertax an individual that he or she is in state of stress because discrepancy between these demands and his or her own abilities (Corsini, 2002).

At the extreme, the situation may impose demands beyond the individual's capacity to meet them, even given the resources available in the situation. Obviously, the degree of stress is a function of the ability of a given individual to meet these demands in the situation. The poor fit between the person and the environment can also occur if relevant supplies in the environment (Ibid, 2002) do not satisfy the person's motives.

Furthermore, Lazarus and others have pointed out that some individuals may perceive high demands on them in positive light, as challenges, as opportunities to advance their esteem of themselves by attaining high goals (Lazarus 1976). When stress viewed as stimulus-response, as opposed to its stimulus and response definitions, stress is defined as the consequence of the interaction between an environmental stimulus and individual's responses. Here, stress is considered as both external and internal event emphasizing on the results of the interaction between the environment and individual's response (Ivancevich and Matteson, 1990).

Though these differences reflect the confusion in defining or conceptualizing stress, according to Ivancevich and Matteson (1990) these definitions offer important insight about the concept of stress and contribute a lot to develop a working definition by borrowing ideas from each definition.

Accordingly, Ivancevich and Matteson (1990: 219) define stress as "a non-specific adaptive response, moderated by individual differences and/or psychological process, that is a consequence of any internal as well as external experiences or environmental actions or events that create psychological and/or physiological imbalance within individuals which could be expressed in his feelings, actions, and reactions."

Thus, stress refers, in part, to stressors, which are any physical or psychological events that range from daily hassle, to life events or strains, to catastrophic events or situations to which people must react because they cause the body to deviate from its normal function (Waleleign, 1997).

In students' life, stress is activated when the threat to security, self-esteem, or safety is perceived and is often triggered by environmental interaction that may be problematic for them in new and stressful conditions, especially of college life. In line with this, stress is conceptualized as a process that involves recognition of and response to threat or challenge or danger (Stone and Neal, 1984, as sited by Walelign, 1997).

For the purposes of this paper, stress was defined in the context of a transactional model that acknowledges the interactions between individuals and their environment based on Lazarus (1984) definition of stress which is "Stress is a condition or feeling experienced when a person perceives that demands exceed the personal and social resources the individual is able to mobilize."

#### 2.1.2 The effect of stress

Stress is something that a person must learn to live with. It is generally agreed that a certain amount of stress is desirable; otherwise life can become boring and monotonous. Some stress has positive effect in the person life. It increase inspiration to live a better life and creativity;

stimulate to work harder, use resources wisely and effectively and complete work on time; and used as a self-motivation. However, there are negative effects from over and under stress. And most of the time this side of stress is seen widely in most people (Kreitner, R, & Kinicki, 2001).

Stress affects the body in many different ways. Some of these are obvious, but others may not be as noticeable or easy to detect until they become more severe. Different people are affected more or less intensely, and in different ways. The effect of stress often look like symptoms of other illnesses (partially due to the fact that stress lowers immunity and makes us vulnerable to many things), sometimes people mistake symptoms of illness for stress and vice versa (Griffin, R. M, 2010).

While stress affects everyone in a unique way, there are certain effects that are common. Stress can affect your body, your thoughts and feelings, and your behavior. Ivancevich and Mattenson (1990) categorize the various consequence or effects of stress into affective, behavioral, cognitive, physical and mental health, and organizational consequences of stress.

## 2.1.2.1 Affective consequence of stress

The subjective or affective effect of stress indicate the emotional feelings of individuals that include anxiety, depression, low self-esteem, aggression, apathy, frustration, loss of temper, irritability etc. An employee with the above mentioned stress effect will have a very low working attitude and is not motivated to work, thus the organization will not be productive (Ivancevich and Mattewson, 1990).

As one of the commonly cited stress symptoms for individual, anxiety is a vague subjective feeling of fear, seen as general emotional response to any situation (stress) that threatens both the physical and psychological survival of the individual (Plutchick, 1980 as sited by Walelign, 1997). Anxiety represents a reaction resulting from inability to cope with an overwhelming stress that is seen as consequences of repression of emotion and is a sign of some underling conflict. Therefore, various stressful events could be the cause for anxiety occurrence at different severity level.

In students' life, anxiety shows the extent to which one feels tense, anxious, worries, etc., in connection to work, to test, and any other situation, such as experiences with people and environment (Walelign, 1997).

## 2.1.2.3. Behavioral effect of stress

Excessive stress usually develops over a period of time and often goes unnoticed by the individual until a physical or emotional toll has been exacted. Stress has also a behavioral effect if it does not manage properly. The behavioral effect of stress include the individual actions and reactions in response to stress, such as alcoholism, drug abuse, smoking, emotional out bursts, excessive eating, Social withdrawal and the like. These effects of stress lead to physically not be able to perform well as they affect the employee health (Kreitner and Kinicki, 1992).

## 2.1.2.4. Cognitive effect of stress

Cognitive effect of stress include the mental reactions of individual during stress, such as inability to make sound decisions, poor concentration, hypersensitivity to criticism, etc. The cognitive stress reactions are one group of the components of the psychological stress responses which include distortions of thinking, lowered intellectual functioning, unproductive and anxiety generating patterns of thinking and indecisiveness (Kreither and Kinicki, 1992).

Various stress reaction could be categorized into catastrophizing thoughts and disruptions in the ability to think clearly, remember accurately, and solve problems efficiently. Catastrophizing thoughts, as one of the most common cognitive stress response, imply the dwelling on and overemphasizing the potential consequences of negative events and the act of engaging in unproductive thoughts that interfere in cognitive reactions or with task focused thinking (Sarason, 1984 as sited by Walelign, 1997).

An individual student may fail to learn because he/she is too emotionally up set to pay attention to what is going in the classroom. Such emotional problems that result in obstacle to cognitive reactions may also stem from various difficulties. Some students encounter learning stress and other stressful situations in individual students' life in which case the school and out-of- the school conditions become negative experience for individual students that lead to cognitive distortions (Walelign, 1997).

## 2.1.2.5 Physical effect of stress

Stress is a physical and psychological reaction to events emanating from one's environment. It is no secret that psychological stress and physical illness are related as there is relationship in mind and body. Stress triggers physiological and chemical (hormones) changes in the body. Physical effects are commonly accompanied with excessive stress.(Graham, 2006; Lupien, 2009)

The physical effect of stress is any symptom of stress in the body that is connected with health of the individual. It includes muscle tension, pains in shoulders or neck and chest, stomach/abdominal pain, skin irritations, 'Pounding' or 'racing' heart, sweaty palms diarrhea, unable to sleep or excessive sleep, holding breath and shortness of breath and the like (Ivancevich and Mattewson,1990). These often lead to mental and physical exhaustion and illness. Too much stress can cause problems and affect our health.

## 2.1.2.6. Institutional consequence of stress

Institutional consequence of stress refers to both the actions and feeling of individual in relation to the institutes in response to stress, such as the act of absenteeism, dissatisfaction with life, sense of alienation etc. These effects occur due to the individual hate for work, dissatisfaction in profession, satisfaction with the management or personal problems whatever the reason these effects totally destroy an organization and lead to failure (Ivancevich and Mattewson, 1990).

#### 2.3. Stress in University Students

In university students, the term stress has commonly been used to describe subjective responses to an experience or situation. Homesickness and worries associated with meeting course requirements are good examples, although nonacademic worries are often included. The term has also been used to refer to life events and difficulties such as bereavement or financial hardship that may be considered universally threatening without the proviso in assessment that the event caused stress, upset, or worry (Encyclopedia of Stress, 2016).

Stress in college students is increasing. Sax (1997) found that 9.7% of college freshmen report frequent depression. Additionally, only 48% of female students and 59.3% of male students were confident in their mental health. May, R.W & Casazza, S.P (2012) found that students reporting

high stress levels will exhibit more unhealthy behaviors. This includes poor diet, lack of exercise and sleep patterns. They found that highly stressed students perceive themselves as less healthy, are prone to less healthy habits and report a lower level of self-esteem.

There are many sources of stress in college students. These are most commonly identified by students in surveys worldwide include the academic, financial, and relationship domains, although it should be noted that student reports are constrained by the areas initially defined by the investigators. Ross, Niebling and Heckert(1999) used the Student Stress Survey (SSS) to identify the major sources of stress in this population.

The researchers surveyed 100 undergraduate students at a mid-sized Midwestern university. The survey consisted of 40 items that were divided into four categories of potential sources of stress. These categories included interpersonal sources of stress, intrapersonal sources of stress, academic sources of stress and environmental sources of stress.

Other researcher Burge (2009) developed University student stress (USS). USS has 22-items that are grouped into three factors (Academic-related Stress, Time-related Stress and Social/Environmental-related Stress). After rating a 22-item academic stressor checklist, students were asked "What other university-related factors contribute to your stress?". Urges add the other six factors basedthe responses participants given to open-ended question about other university stressors. Generally, there are nine proposed factors in USS which were derived from content analysis of open-ended responses. These are academic, time/Balance, work, intrapersonal/Self, Interpersonal/Social, Family, teaching quality/Relations with teachers/Support from teachers, financial and environmental/Campus/Administrative/TransitionBurge (2009).

To evaluate the existing evidence of the source of stress in student life, only four stressors (intrapersonal, Interpersonal, academic, and environmental) are discussed here which are related to the researcher instrument. These sources have been selected because they are specifically related to the student experience and have been the main focus of investigations. The questionnaire used in this study also addresses only these factors as source of stress.

### 2.2.1 Interpersonal/Social sources of stress

The interpersonal sources of stress are the result of interactions with others such as a fight with a girlfriend or boyfriend or trouble with an individual's parents. Interpersonal relation could create stress for individuals when there is intra group conflict, dissatisfaction and lack of cohesiveness with the group/individuals (Ivancevich and Matteson, 1990).

In the instructional setting, the social stressors or the interpersonal stress for students include the poor relationships of the individual students with their peers, teachers, and other school personnel. Here, poor relationship implies the lack of appropriate recognition and support from concentrated bodies which could also be expressed by lack of cohesiveness, dissatisfaction with others including intra-group conflict (Linn and Zeppa, as sited by Walelign, 1997).

College students stressed out in making new friends. Giving up or changing new friendships and developing new ones is often a stressful activity associated with college life. It can be stressful for some students to try and find someone they can share things with for the support they used to have. The process of developing new friendships, while integrating themselves into a new social network, is an important step in the developmental process for students. New friends require a period of testing to see how much they can self-disclose to that person and feel comfortable at the same time. Going through these processes can be a stressful (Rachel, 2004).

Family can also be a source of stress for college students. Some families place a great deal of stress on college students by telling them that they need to acquire good grades. There are some students who are the first to attend college in their families, which can place a great deal of pressure on an individual. Families will remind the student of this often, especially if they are not thriving in their courses (Ibid, 2004).

The interpersonal sources of stress that are related to measures of stress in this study include Trouble with parents; Trouble with boyfriend/girlfriend; Friendship conflict; Not having enough support from others; and Competing with other studentsPresnall (2008).

### 2.2.2 Intrapersonal/Self sources of stress

The intrapersonal source of stress indicated a change within the individual, which make the individual to feel distress. These events are situation, action, and ideas that are related to the overall feeling of the individuals (Niebling and Heckert, 1999).

There are many students who have to work while they are attending college(Gittins, 2007). Being a first-year student can cause adjustment to college to be even more difficult. Some students have to work in order to cover their own expense. This can pose a number of hazards for students. There are many times when students have to work late at night and then do not have the time to study. This can then reflect on their academic work and on their grades.

Worrying about their financial issues and their grades can be an immense stressor in their academic life (May, R. W., & Casazza, S. P., 2012). More time spent at work can encroach on time otherwise available for studying. As one can see, one stressor can cause another stressor to occur. The intrapersonal source of stress which included in this study are Change in eating habits; New responsibilities; Financial difficulties; Decline in personal health; Fear of failing; and change in sleeping habit (Archer 2003).

#### 2.2.3. Academic sources of stress

Academic sources of stress identified school related activities such as an increase in workload, difficulty in assignments and examinations or transferring schools(Agolla and Ongori, 2009; Agolla, 2009). The university years are a time of continuous assessments for students in most countries, and as such they can put a considerable amount of pressure to achieve on even the hardiest of students. Academic sources of stress identified school related activities such as an increase in workload, difficulty in assignments and examinations or transferring schools(Kadapatti and Vijayalaxmi, 2012). The effect of studying for, taking examinations (Baldwin et al, 2009) and poor time management has been demonstrated in a recent longitudinal study of undergraduates carried out by Surtees and colleagues at the University of Cambridge in England. Levels of anxiety and depressive symptoms peaked during examination periods, although this suggests that the negative impact is likely to be short-lived for them a majority who pass successfully (Encyclopedia, 2002).

A frequently reported source of stress that college students encounter is receiving a lower grade than they expected(Saipanish, 2003). Some students link their self-worth or future with their grades. Students may start doubting their capability or competency in their future careers (Silver and Glicken, 1990). The academic workload requires that students face a series of peak periods such as finals; there is a relatively constant underlying pressure to complete an upcoming assignment (Agolla and Ongori, 2009; Awino and Agolla, 2008). Course overload that mean shaving too many courses in a given semester can also cause students a great deal of stress (Talib and Zai-ur-Rehman, 2012).

The academic source stress that are related to measures of stress in this study include Increased class workload (Krishan (2014),Lower grade than anticipated and All forms of assessment - exams, assignment (Baldwin et al., 2009). Lack of support from Instructors, presentations, Having difficulty understanding academic material (Robot ham, 2008), Accessing learning materials, Instructors-lack of teaching skill and Learning context – full of competition(Sinha et al., 2001).

## 2.2.4. Environmental/Campus sources of stress

Environmental sources of stress were related to problems in the school area that demand change and adaptation (Burge, 2009). The environmental factor of a campus that are related to measures of stress include Change in living environment; Adjusting to the campus environment; Lack of campus facilities and equipment; Lack of helpfulness of administrative staff; Lack of communication; and Lack of recreational activities on campus.

## 2.4. Academic field of study and stress

Stress is an unpleasant state of emotional and physiological arousal that people experience in situations that they perceive as dangerous or threatening to their well-being. The awareness of the stressfulness of events seems necessary for stress response to occur and the emphasis is on the interaction of the stressful agents and human system of appraisal and evaluation (Lazarus, 1966). So difference on stress among different group is seen and a lot of studies conducted to compare different groups stress level.

Misra and Castillo (2004) conduct study on compared academic stressors and reactions to stressors between American and international student (non-Americans) using Gadzella's Life Stress Inventory. The sample consisted of 392 international and American students from 2 Midwestern universities. American students reported higher self-imposed stressors and greater behavioral reactions to stressors than international students. The findings emphasize the need to recognize cultural differences in stress management.

Walton (2002) conducted study to determine is there a difference in the perceived stress levels and the coping styles of junior and senior students in nursing and social work programs. Data was obtained through self-reported survey procedures. Responses indicated that social work students have significantly higher perceived stress levels than nursing students. Nursing students identified more reliance on approach coping responses, while social work students identified more reliance on avoidance coping responses. No significant differences were identified between the two groups based on age, gender, marital status, employment status or class.

Murphy et al.., 2009 conducted study involving a group of 290 medical and dental students to directly compare perceived stress levels encountered during their education. A modified questionnaire based on Garbee et al.'s Dental Environmental Stress survey was provided to the students by either email or paper. The purpose of the investigation was to determine if the sources of stress reported by medical and dental students, both male and female, were due to common factors.

The overall findings show that dental students had greater levels of stress than medical students in three of the five categories. The only category in which medical students demonstrated greater stress levels than dental students was in professional identity. Stress levels related to clinical work varied significantly between the type of professional student and his or her year in school.

#### **CHAPTER 3:METHODOLOGY**

## 3.1. Research Design

The purpose of the study wasto compare the stress level of students in different faculties. Comparative descriptive research design was used to explore and describe the stress levels experienced by different faculty students. It is appropriate to answer the research question in the study.

## 3.2. Sampling Techniques

The target population of the study wasundergraduatestudents from university of North Cyprus at different academic units. Academic unit at the Near East University consist of program units, departments, faculties, schools, institutes andresearch institutes. Near East University has the following academic units:8 graduate schools, 20 faculties, 3 high schools and 220 departments.

For thepurpose of this study only seven academic units (Faculty of Social Art and Science, School of Medicine, faculty of Engineering, faculty of Economics and Administrative Science, Faculty Tourism, Faculty of Architecture) are selected. Using purposive sampling or judgmental samplinghelps the researcher to identify each faculty students easily.

These seven faculties where used as a sampling frame, from which the sample is drawn. The researchers were use regular students, rather than distance students, because these subjects are more available to complete the questionnaire. The researcher also usedstudents across the same school year (undergraduate students) using random sampling to minimize the stress effect on academic year.

The sample for the study has been selected by using stratified random sampling technique to observe existing relationships between academic fields of study and stress level. As stratified random sampling involves dividing the population into subgroups, the researcher divided the entire sampling frame into different subgroups or strata based on departments.

J	Department of Medicine students from Faculty of Medicine;
J	Department of Political Science and International Relations from Faculty of Economics
	and Administrative science;
J	Department of Civil Engineering from Near East University Engineering facultyand
J	Department of English language and literature from faculty of Art and Science
J	Faculty of Architecture
J	faculty of Truism

Each department selectedrandomly as one stratum. Each stratum then sampled as an independent sub-population, out of which individual elements selected randomly.

The researcher selects a stratified random sampling method because it identifies subgroups for comparing them on the stress level they experience. It is also leads to more efficient statistical estimates because strata will be selected based upon relevance to the criterion in question (academic fields of study), instead of availability of the samples.

Forty individual subjects from each department were selected using disproportionate stratified random sampling from each stratum or subgroups, which mean the researcher, took the same number of students (thirty students) from each stratum. This permits greater balancing of statistical power of tests of differences between strata by sampling equal numbers from strata varying widely in size. It also makes the comparison work easy and clear.

#### 3.3. Data collection instrument

To gather relevant information regarding how different faculty students vary in the stress levels they experienced, and for the comparison purpose, a structured questionnaire used as a tool. This helps the collection of reliable and reasonably valid data relatively simply, efficiently and in short period of time.

The structured comprises three parts; first was ademographic tool developed by the researcher. This tool was mainly design to identify general characteristics that help the researcher to differentiate each department students. The tool identifies the independent variable, which is the

program in which the student enrolled– Medicine, Political Science and International Relations, Civil Engineering and English language and literature, faculty of Truism.

The researcher would design second part for collecting information on the source of stress. This Survey on source of stress will be adopted by the researcher integrating Student Stress Survey, SSS(Ross et al., 1999) and University Student Stress, USS (Burge, 2009). Even though these stress measures were designed and more used in Europe and United States, they contain more items that are common to all students. Ten items from SSS and fifteen items from USS would be utilized and it will be modified to the context of the participants.

The third part used in the study would be the Perceived stress scale develop by (CohenKessler&Gordon 1997), the most widely use psychological instrument for measuring an individual's perception of stress. In PSS items will be designed to identify how unpredictable, uncontrollable or overload respondent willfound his or her life to be within preceding completion of the instrument. The items on this scale will be based on psychological stress theory, which states that a person interacts with his or her environment, and in turn, appraises stressors in light of available coping resources (Walton, 2002).

#### 3.4. Procedure for Data Collection

First of all, the questionnaire Perceived of Stress and Source of Stress Questionnaire will be elaborated for this study according to stress scale and the research objectives. After establishing the final version of the questionnaire, contactwas made with the sevenidentified department heads in order to explain the research objectives and get the permission to conduct the survey. The department heads issued with a small information pack, containing a sample questionnaire and personal statement to the students. Therefore, after the researcher gate the willingness of the department, distribute the questionnaire for participant, and finally collected the questionnaires.

## 3.5. Data analysis method

The next step was the analysis of the collected data. The data analysis will focus on perceived stress levels and the source of stress according to the research objectives. The researcher scored responses from the PSS and Survey on source of stress. The data gathered by the questionnaire will be quantitative data; the Statistical Package for Social Science (SPSS) used to analyze the

result data. Descriptive and inferential statistics was generated. Based on the content analysis of the data collected, the responses in each areagrouped into categories.

Responses from the perceived stress scale (PSS) have been hand score by the researcher. The higher total PSS score indicates that the participant has a higher level of perceived stress than participants that indicated a lower total PSS score.

The result from the measure of source of stress has been also hand score by the researcher. Raw scores, based on the participant's responses, were determined for each scale e.g. Interpersonal, Intrapersonal, academic and Environmental source of stress. The scales with higher scores suggests increased source of stress on the respondent.

Total scores on the PSS and source of stress measurewassummarized by using descriptive and inferential statistics. Analysis of Variance (ANOVA) will be used to calculate the differences in perceived stress levels of the students from different departments as well as the differences in source of stress. ANOVAs used to compare the means of two or more groups. In conclusion, this study allows the researcher to determine if academic fields of study have been a significant influence on stress level across any of the groups under study (academic unit).

#### **CHAPTER 4: RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS**

This descriptive comparative study was conducted in University of North Cyprus. The study determined the perceived stress level among different academic field of study students. The results of this study and its discussion will be presented in this chapter.

The chapter consists three sections. The first section presents the results of the study. The results are presented in three parts; general characteristics, source of stress and perceived stress level. The second section is about discussion-analyzed data in relation to the research question.

## 4.1 General characteristics of the participants

The sample of this study consisted of students in different academic field of study in University of North Cyprus. The participant was undergraduate students, enrolled in seven academic field of study (departments) in the 2020 academic year. The total number of respondent was 206 consisted of 26 Medicine students, 30 civil Engineering, 30 English language and literature, 29 international relations, 30 Tourism management, 28 Architecture and 30 law.

The sample was predominantly male, with 111 (54%) male and 94 (46%) female. The sample of department medicine contained 16 (8%) male and 10 (5%) female. Most of the respondents were male in civil engineering department 19 (9%) male, with only 11 (5%) female respondents. Department English language contained 18 (9%) female Respondents and 12 (6%) male. Department of Tourism management contained 17 (8%) females and 13 (6%) male. Department Architecture contained 16 (8%) male and 13(6%) females. Department of Law contained 18 (9%) male and 12 (6%) female. In international relations department, 17 (8%) male students and only 12 (6%) female respondents were taken as a sample size.

#### 4.2 Survey on source of stress

Survey of source of stress was used to measure source of stress. This survey consists 25 items divided in four main categories of potential stressors: 5 items (20%) representing interpersonal/social stressors, 6 items (24%) representing environmental/campus stressors, 8 items (32%) representing academic stressors, 6 items (24%) representing intrapersonal. The

analysis was done by calculating the mean scores of respondents who rete their response according to the five likert scale. The results are presented in seven parts as follow:

## 4.2.1 Department of English language and literature

In English language students, different categories of source of stress that is interpersonal, intrapersonal, academic and environmental almost had approximate effect in causing stress as shown in table 2 below. However, intrapersonal source of stress were the most common source of stress in the research samples.

Two of the top five source of stress listed by participants were intrapersonal sources. From table 1, the five most frequently stressors were financial difficulties (2.83), competing with other students (2.33), all forms of assessments (2.3), new responsibility (2.17), and lack of recreational activities on campus (2.16).

## 4.2.2 Department of civil Engineering

The result for civil engineering students indicates that there was difference in the four categories of source of stress (interpersonal, intrapersonal academic and environmental). Academic sources were the most common stressor and interpersonal sources were least identified stressor in the study (Table 2). The most frequently listed sources of stressors were as follow, increase class workload (2.77) and financial difficulties (2.43), lack of helpfulness of administrative staff (2.37) and lack of recreational activities on campus (2.3) were also frequently reported stressors as shown in table 1.

## **4.2.3 Department International Relation**

Department of international relations data indicates that studentswere more stressed because of environmental source specially lack of recreational activities on campus (3.2). However, academic sources were also most frequently reported source. Among the five top sources of stress, three of them are academic sources that are increased class workload (3.03), learning context-full of competition (2.87) and all forms of assessment (2.83). Interestingly, four of the least five source of stress listed by the participants were interpersonal sources. The five least frequently reported stressors were; trouble with parents (1.1), fear of failing (1.23), friendship

conflict (1.3), trouble with boyfriend (1.4), and not having enough support (1.67) as shown in table 1 below.

## 4.2.4 Department of law

Department of law result shows main source of most students stress is interpersonal stressors and academic source. Among these sources of stress; having difficulty with understanding academic materials (1.65), inadequate learning materials (2.35) and increase in class workloads (2.61) as shown in table 1 below.

## 4.2.5 Department of Medicine

As table 2 reflects, environmental sources (2.18) were the most contributing factor to stress in medicine students in the study. Intrapersonal sources where the second most stressors and interpersonal sources where least stressor for medical students.

## 4.2.6Department of Tourism and Hotel Management

As the collected data, result indicates department of tourism and Hotel management student the most source of stress was environmental stress and interpersonal stress. Not having enough support from others (1.61), friendship conflict (1.62), lack of recreational activities on campus (2.67), lack of facilities and equipment (2.06), change in living environment (1.64).

## 4.2.7 Department of Architecture

As participant response mean score indicate in table two, the main source of stress for architecture student was academic stressor. Inadequate learning materials (2.05), increase class workload (2.61), lower grade than anticipated (1.67), all from of assessment (2.15) and lack of support from instructors (1.87) are among the top source of stress.

Table 1, Source of stress: mean score for seven departments in each item.

## Note

- 1. DEL stands for department of English language and literature.
- 2. DCE stands for department of Civil Engineering
- 3. DIR stands for department of International Relations
- 4. DLW stands for department of Law
- 5. DMD stands for department of medicine
- 6. DTHM stands for department of Tourism and Hotel Management
- 7. DARC stands for department of Architecture

Table 1. Source of stress: mean score for seven departments in each item.

		Mean						
		score						
No	Source of stress	DEL	DCE	DIR	DLW	DMD	DTH	DARC
							M	
1	Trouble with parents	1.63	1.33	1.47	1.1	1.27	1.63	1.41
2	Trouble with boy/girlfriend	1.6	0.7	1.63	1.4	1.67	1.21	1.33
3	Competing with other student	2.33	2.07	1.93	2.7	1.87	1.68	2.01
4	Friendship conflict	1.57	1.43	1.17	1.3	1.01	1.62	1.78
5	Lack of enough support from	1.73	1	1.4	1.67	1.31	1.61	1.03
	others							
6	Change in sleeping habits	1.76	2.47	2.23	1.9	1.81	1.43	1.14
7	Change in eating habits	1.87	2.17	1.97	2.6	1.73	1.83	1.41
8	New responsibilities	2.17	2.43	2.53	2.63	1.99	2.01	2.31
9	Financial difficulties	2.83	1.6	2.43	2.4	1.34	2.42	2.56
10	Decline in personal health	1.6	1.47	1.4	1.93	1.02	1.88	1.67
11	Fear of failing	1.73	1.7	1.27	1.23	1.24	1.13	1.5
12	Increased in class workload	2.13	2.87	2.77	3.03	2.21	2.56	2.61
13	Lower grade than anticipated	1.53	2.33	1.93	2.07	1.4	1.36	1.63
14	All from of assessment (exams,	2.3	2.4	2.76	2.83	2.04	2.47	2.05
	assignments, presentation)							
15	Lack of support from instructors	1.5	1.63	2.1	2.33	2.31	1.82	1.87
16	Having difficulty understanding	1.8	1.3	1.4	1.87	1.66	1.79	1.65
	academic material							
17	Inadequate learning materials	2.07	1.26	1.8	1.7	1.32	1.52	2.35
18	Lack of teaching skills of	1.7	1.33	2.6	1.83	1.6	1.43	1.2
	instructors							
19	Learning context full completion	1.9	1.6	2.27	2.87	2.12	1.8	1.4
20	Change in living environment	1.77	1.7	1.97	2.07	1.81	1.64	1.53
21	Adjusting to campus environment	1.78	2.1	2	1.18	1.91	1.71	1.31

22	lack of campus facilities and	1.77	2.31	2.2	2.43	2.26	2.06	1.99
	equipment							
23	Lack of helpfulness from	2.01	2.29	2.37	2.6	2.33	2.15	2.43
	administration staff							
24	Lack of communication from	2.03	2.89	2.27	2.3	2.21	2.34	2.59
	university							
25	Lack of recreational activities on	2.17	2.36	2.3	3.2	2.87	2.67	2.92
	campus							

Table 2: source of stress survey: Mean scores for seven departments in four cluster group of stressors

		Mean	Mean	Mean	Mean	Mean	Mean	Mean
NO	Source of stress group	score	score	score of	score of	score of	score	score
		of DEL	of DCE	DRI	DLW	<b>DMD</b>	of	of
							DTHM	DARC
1	Interpersonal stressors	1.73	1.14	1.52	1.61	1.32	1.61	1.34
2	Intrapersonal stressors	1.99	1.97	1.97	2.12	1.67	1.93	2.02
3	Academic stressors	1.87	1.83	2.2	2.32	2.03	2.14	2.14
4	Environmental stressors	1.87	2.18	2.18	2.4	2.28	2.02	2.21

## **4.3.** Perceived stress scale (PSS)

The perceived stress scale (PSS) measured the stress level of participants. The Perceived stress level is a 10- question liker type scales the measures the degree to which one's life situations and circumstances are perceived as stressful by using the participants' responses to items. These 10 items are individually rated on a numerical scale from 0 (never experienced) to 5 very often experienced. Scores are obtained by reverse scoring the positively stated questions (items 4, 5, 7 and 8) and summing all items; they can range from 0-5 with higher scores indicating a higher level of perceivedstress.

The mean normal score for females on the PSS is 13.7 with a standard deviation of 6.6, and the mean normal score for males is 12.1 with a standard deviation of 5.9 (Cohen & Williamson 1988; Dr. Cohen's scales, 2015). The mean PSS scores of the entire sample were 20.27. The finding of the study reflects that, most of the students were experiencing high stress in their daily life. This indicates students experience a lot of pressure from table 3, analysis of the distribution revealed significantly higher stress in students (60.8%).

Table 3: PSS among seven-department student

Department	Mean in PSS score	Standard deviation in PSS
DEL	20.73	4.04
DCE	19.67	4.7
DIR	20.23	5.78
DMD	20.43	3.65
DLW	20.32	5.95
DTHM	19.98	5.01
DARC	20.56	4.42

#### 4.4 Discussion

This section elaborate the research findings, examined how the research question were addressed and discussed the implications of the results. The major findings of this study are presented in relation to the previously identified research questions in chapter one. The findings of these questions are indicated below.

**Research questions** one is there statistically significant difference in the perceived stress levels among students in different field of study?

This research question was answered using an analysis of variance (ANOVA) with all outcomes response. Table3 presents descriptive statistics on the means of the four department's respondents. An alpha level .05 determined the level of significance.

As shown in table4, there is no significance difference in perceived stress level among different departments in the study. An ANOVA yielded an F-ratio of 0.28, which means that students from different academic field of study experience the same level of stress at same level of stress at 5% level of significance. This indicates that academic field of study has low effect on the perceived stress level of students.

This result is not consistent with other study that has been conducted by (Walton, 2000) comparing two different academic fields of study students. Walton found out a significant difference in the perceived stress of nursing and social work students. The social workers identified a significantly higher level of perceived stress than did the nursing students the research reveals no difference in perceived stress level may be because of the time the research conducted or the sampling techniques as the sample have taken only undergraduate students in specific departments. So, further research is needed to clarify the influence of academic field of study on stress considering these limitations of study.

The research is not also support a general belief that medical students are more stressed than other students in other departments. However, the results of this study report the opposite that medical students have the least mean score in the perceived stress level and most of them experience moderate stress. Most people think that medical students stressed, as they are work with patients, but the tool that measure the source of stress does not include stressor that are related to patients. Thismay underestimate the PSS scores of medical students. Future study of stress in medical students would be conducted using instrument that specifically developed for medical students.

Even if there is no significant difference among the seven departmentstudents, the mean scores for each group is not the same. The PSS mean of English language and literature (20.27) students was the highest compared to other departments students. Interestingly, medicine students PSS mean scores (19.67) were the least scorers in the PSS as shown in Table3. These findings give strong support to the notation that university student's experience higher level of stress.

Table 4: Analysis of variance data for perceived stress scale.

Source	DF	SS	MS	FS
Between groups	3	18.19	6,06	0.28
With groups	117	2553.28	21.82	
Total	119	2571.47		

**Research questions two:** whatare the common stressors among students in different academic field of study.

As shown in table 5, environmental source of stress were most common stressors in the seven departments students' academic stressors were also the most frequently reported stressor. However, intrapersonal stressors were the least source of stress among the respondents of the study.

The most frequently listed sources of stressors were; increased class workload (2.72), all forms of assessment (2.58), lack of recreational activities on campus (2.5), new responsibilities (2.44) and financial difficulties (2.33). Interestingly, stressors were; trouble with boyfriend/girlfriend (1.34), friendship conflict (1.36), trouble with parents (1.28) not having enough support from others (1.45), and fear of failing (1.47) as shown in Table 5.

These findings do not correspond with the other studies conducted on source of stress by (Ross, S.E.B, Niebling& Heckert, T.M. 1999). They found out that intrapersonal source of stress are the most common source of stress. According to the five most frequently stressors were change in sleeping habits, change in eating habits, new responsibilities and increased class workload.

The difference between this study findings and ross et al. finding is may be because of the difference in respondents that was students from different backgrounds and developed countries. The second reason may be, because of instrument used. This study integrates students stress survey (SSS) and University Students stress (USS). But Ross et.al, 1999 study used only SSS.

**Research question Three:** are there specific stressors that are more prevalent among students in the specific field of study than other fields of study students.

As there are common stressors in different academic field of study (departments), there are also specific stressors that are more related with high stress levels in the different academic field of study. From table 1, competing with other students, change in eating habits, decline in personal health, learning context- full of competition, lack of helpfulness of administrative staff, and lack of recreational activities on campus related with IRL students.

English language and literature students experience high stress level because of financial difficulties and accessing learning materials stressors compared to other departments. Change in sleeping habit and lower grade than anticipated were more related to medicine students. However, medical students experience high stress because of increasedclass workload. Civil Engineering students show high stress on instructor lack of teaching skill compared to other academic field of study as shown in table1.

This finding supports the general supports the general belief held by university student'spopulation that each department students are more prone to different specific stressor. For example, it is believed that engineering students are more stressed because of difficulty of commuting different mathematical equations. The results for this study also show that closer finding, that is, instructor lack of teaching stress them more. However, the result also reveals stressor for civil engineering students.

As previous studies (Dyrbye, Thomas and Shanafelt, 2005) found out, the results of this study also reveal that medical students have high-class workload. This happen as result of patient responsibility and the credit hour they learn in one semester. Change in sleeping habit and lower grade than anticipated were also reveals by the study as high stressor for medical students as they have more class workload and they spend much time in the library.

Table 5: Source of stress survey: Mean scores for four departments in each item

		Mean of Seven departments
No	Source of stress	Respondents
1	Trouble with parents	1.38
2	Trouble with boy/girl friends	1.34
3	Competing with other students	2.28
4	Friendship conflict	1.36
5	Lack of enough support from others	1.45
6	Change in sleeping habits	2.09
7	Change in eating habits	2.15
8	New responsibility	2.44
9	Financial difficulties	2.33
10	Decline in personal health	1.64
11	Fear failing	1.47
12	Increase in class work load	2.72
13	Lower grade than anticipated	1.97
14	All from of assessment (exams, assignments, presentation)	2.58
15	Lack of support from instructors	1.89
16	Having difficulty understanding academic material	1.63
17	Inadequate learning materials	1.71
18	Lack of teaching skill of instructors	1.9
19	Learning context full completion	2.16
20	Change in living environment	1.77
21	Adjusting to campus environment	1.95
22	Lack of campus facilities and equipment	2.18
23	Lack of helpfulness from administration staff	2.32
24	Lack of communication from university	2.22
25	Lack of recreational activities on campus	2.5

Table 6: Source of stress survey: Mean scores for seven departments in four cluster group of stressor

No	Source of stress group	Mean of seven departments
1	Interpersonal stressors	1.53
2	Intrapersonal stressors	2.02
3	Academic stressors	2.068
4	Environmental stressors	2.157

## **CHAPTER 5: SUMMARY CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION**

# 5.1 Summary

The purpose of this study is to investigate the difference in the extent of stress as a function of academic fields of study by comparing students in different departments. The study of this phenomenon can have important implications for administrators in higher education as perceptions of high stress levels can lead to poor academic performance, attrition, depression and even serious health problems in college and university students. It also helps teachers and counselors to recognize the main sources of students stress.

The population for this study consisted of 206 students from seven departments at Near East University during the 2020 academic year. Theses sample consisted of 26 medicine students, 30 Civil Engineering, 30 English language and literature, 29 international relations, 30 Tourism and Hotel management, 28 Architecture and 30 law students. The researcher used three instruments to collect information. The first tool was demographic questionnaire, which was developed by the researcher. The tool identified the program (department) that the student is enrolled in and the gender of the respondents. The researcher was designed a second tool that is survey on source of stress to collect information about source of stress. The third tool used was perceived stress scale (PSS) developed by Cohen to identify the stress level.

Each of these tools was placed in a packet by the researcher along with cover letter. After obtaining permission from the faculty, the researcher starts to distributequestionnaires online using data collection tool. Responses from the PSS and survey on source of stress were hand scored by the researcher. Then data was analyzed using Comparative descriptive and inferential statistics method. An alpha level of 0.05 was used to establish statistical significance.

The finding from demographic of questionnaire showed that the population was predominantly male, with 111(54%) and 94 female students (46%). The sample of English language and literature male 12 (6%) and 18 female (9%). Most of respondents were male 19(9%) in civil Engineering department, with only 11 (5%) female respondents. More than half of medicine students 16(8%) were male and 10(5%) female. In department of tourism and Hotel managementconsists 13 (6%) male and 17 (8%) female students. School of law contained 18(9%)

male and 12(6%) female. Architecture department contained 16(8%) male students and 13 (6%) females. In international relations department most of the respondent was male students 17(8%) and only 12(6%) female students where participated in the study.

The first research question asked if there was statically significant difference in the perceived stress levels among students in different field of study. The finding reflects no significant difference in perceived stress level among different departments in the study. This indicates that academic field of study has low effect on the perceived stress level of students. The findings of survey on source of stress used to answer the second and third research questions. The result reflects environmental source of stress were most common stressors in the seven department students.

However, there are specific stressors that are more related with each department. English language and literature students, Law department students more stressed due to interpersonal source of stress. Both medical students and International relations department students were more prone to environmental stressors this were also same in tourism and hotel management department. Academic source were the most common stressor in Civil Engineering students and Architecture.

#### 5.2 Recommendation

The researcher suggests the following recommendations:

- 1. Near East University administrator should implement comprehensive stress managements program as most of the students experience high level of perceived stress.
- 2. The stress management programs should be implemented to all departments fairly and equally no need to give special advantage to specific department, because different department students report almost the same level of perceived stress.
- 3. As environmental sources are the most prevalent stressors in different academic field of study, campus administrators and counselors need to explore strategies to improve the campus environment. Administrator need to encourage and prepare different recreational activities and develop trusting and supportive relationship with students to enhance to enhance the student's academic, self-esteem and feelings of competence.

- 4. Departments should attempt to decrease the class workload and different form of assessments such as presentation, exams and assignments. Many students reported this as the highest stressor in the questionnaire.
- 5. Specific stress management program for each department students be design as intervention mechanism. There are specific stressor, which is related to each department students.
- 6. Further research should be conducted on perceived stress level of different department students according to gender, year level and age. This research should be also expanded using students in other university and departments from different academic unit.

#### REFERENCE

American college health Association (2004). National college Health Assessment: Reliability and validity Analyses 2000. Balti-more, MD: American College Health Association; 2004.

Agolla, J.E. & Ongori H. (2009). An assessment of academic stress among undergraduate students: The case of University of Botswana, Educational Research and Review, 4(2): 63-70

Archer, James.Ph.D., Christina Carroll, Ph.D, Jaquelyn Liss Resnick, Ph.D. (2003). University of Florida Counseling Center 301 Peabody Hall, Gainesville FL 32611 (352) 392-1575

Baldwin, D. A., F.C. Wilkinson and D.C. Barkley, 2009. "Effective Management of Student Employment: Organizing For Standard Deployment in Academic Libraries". Englewood: Libraries Unlimited, Inc

Baker, S.R. (2003). A prospective longitudinal investigation of social problem-solving appraisals on adjustment to university, stress, health, and academic motivation and performance, Personality and Individual Differences, 35: 569–591.

Burge, J. 2009. "Coping frequency, coping effectiveness, and personality factors in university students. Unpublished Honors thesis", University of Canberra, Australia.

Burgess, Lana. 2017. What to Know About General Adaptation Syndrome. https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/320172.php

Cohen, S., Evans, G. W., Stokols, D., & Krantz, D. S. (1986). Behavior, Health, and Environmental Stress. New York: Plenum Press.

Cohen s and Williamson G(1988) perceived stress in a probability sample of the united states In: Spacapam Sand Oskamp S (eds) The social psychology of Health. Newbury park,CA:sage 31-67

Dr. Cohen's scales (2015) Available at:http://www.psy.cmu.edu/scohen/scales.html.

Dyrbye LN, Thomas MR, Shanafelt TD. Medical student distress: causes, consequences, and proposed solutions. Mayo Clin Proc. 2005;80:1613–1622.

Cohen, S., Kessler, R. C., & Underwood-Gordon, L.(1997) Strategies for measuring stress in psychiatric and physical disorders. In Measuring Stress: A Guide for Health and Social Scientists. Oxford University Press.

Corsini, R. (2002). The dictionary of psychology. New York: Brunner-Routledge.

Corsini, Raymond J. (2002). Dictionary of Psychology. Great Britain: Brunner-Rout ledge.

Ellis, Albert and Robert Harper as cited by Laura Gittins (2007). College Life Stress. Tackling your Dire Need for Approval. A Guide to Rational Living. USA: Albert Ellis& Robert Harper Publishing

Fiske, S. T. (2010). Interpersonal stratification: Status, power, and subordination. In S. T. Fiske, D. T. Gilbert, & G. Lindzey (Eds.), Handbook of social psychology (p. 941–982). John Wiley & Sons

French, Caplan, RD and Harrison, 1982. The mechanisms of job stress and strain. London Wiley.

George Fink, 2016. Definitions, Mechanisms, and Effects Outlined: Lessons from Anxiety. Encyclopedia of Stress 2nd Edition.

Griffin, R. M. (2010). Stress Management Health Center. 10 Health Problems Related to Stress That You Can Fix

Graham JE, Christian LM and Kiecolt-Glaser JK (2006) Stress, age, and immune function: Toward Toussaint et al. 1013 a lifespan approach. Journal of Behavioral Medicine 29(4): 389–400

Higuera, Valencia. 2017. What Is General Adaptation Syndrome?

https://www.healthline.com/health/general-adaptation-syndrome

Holmes TH, Rahe RH. The Social Readjustment Rating Scale. J Psychosom Res. 1997 Aug;11(2):213–218

Hudd, S.S., Dumlao, J., Erdmann-Sager, D., Murray, D., Phan, E., Soukas, N. and Yokozuka, N. (2000) 'Stress at college: effects on health habits, health status and self-esteem', College Student Journal, Vol. 34, No. 2, pp.217–228.

Ivancevich, J. M. & Matteson, M. T. 1990, Organizational Behavior and Management, 2nd edn, Richard Irwin, Homewood.

Jocelyn A. Hollander; Rachel L, 2004. Einwohner Sociological Forum, Vol. 19, No. 4. (Dec., 2004), pp. 533-554

Lazarus, R S 1976. Psychological stress and the coping process. New yorkMcgraw-Hill.

Lupien SJ, McEwen BS, Gunnar MR, et al. (2009) Effects of stress throughout the lifespan on the brain, behavior and cognition. Nature Reviews Neuroscience 10(6): 434-445...

Kadapatti, M.G. &Vijayalaxmi, A.H.M. (2012). Stressors of academic stress - a study of preuniversity students. Indian Journal of Science Resources, 3(1): 171-175

Kagan, J., Reznick, J. S., &Snidman, N. (1987). The physiology and psychology of behavioral inhibition. Child Development, 58, 1459-1473

Kelly DB, Rollings AL, Harmon JG. Chronic self-destructiveness, hopelessness, and risk-taking in college students. Psychology Rep. 2005;96:620-4.

Kreitner, R., & Kinicki, A. (1992). Organizational behavior. Boston: Richard D. Irwin, Inc

Kreitner, R., & Kinicki, A. (1998). Organizational behavior (4th Edition). New York: Mc Graw-Hill Inc.

Kreitner, R., & Kinicki, A. (2001). Organizational behavior (5th ed.). New York: Mc Graw-Hill Inc

Krishan, (2014), Academic Stress among Adolescent in Relation to Intelligence and Demographic Factors, American International Journal of Research in Humanities, Arts and Social Sciences, 123-129

Markrides, L., Veinot, P., Richard, J.mMckee, E., & Gallivan, T. (1998), "A cardiovascular health needs assessment of university students living in residence", Canadian journal public health, Vol. 89, No. 3, pp. 171-175.

Marks, M. A., Zaccaro, S. J., & Mathieu, J. E. (2000). Performance implications of leader briefings and team-interaction training for team adaptation to novel environments. Journal of Applied Psychology, 85, 971–986

May, R. W., & Casazza, S. P. (2012). Academic major as a perceived stress indicator: Extending stress management intervention. College Student Journal, 46(2),

Murphy, P. K., Wilkinson, I. A. G., Soter, A. O., Hennessey, M. N., & Alexander, J. F. (2009). Examining the effects of classroom discussion on students' high-level comprehension of text: A meta-analysis. Journal of Educational Psychology, 101, 740–764.

Morgan, G. (1986). Images of organization. Newbury Park, CA: Sage.

Nur HamizahHj Ramli, 2018. Academic Stress and Self-Regulation among University Students in Malaysia: Mediator Role of Mindfulness. Behavioral sciences (2018).

Plutchik, R. (1980). A general psych evolutionary theory of emotion. In R. Plutchik& H. Kellerman (Eds.), Emotion: Theory, research, and experience: Vol. 1. Theories of emotion (pp. 3-33). New York: Academic.

Presnall Leslie (2008). School-related issues cause anxiety. The Daily Asureveille http://www.lsureveille.com/news/survey-shows-high-stress-among-college-students-1.762793

Rachel, 2004. Negotiating time and space for study student-parents and familial relationships. Book 2nd edition.

Robot ham, D. (2008). Stress among Higher Education Students: Towards a Research Agenda. Higher Education, 56(6): 735-746

Ross, S. E. B., Niebling, C., & Heckert, T. M. (1999). Sources of stress among college students. College Students, 33, 312-318.

Ross, Shannon E., Niebling, Bradley C., Heckert, Teresa M. (1999). Sources of stress among college students. College Student Journal. 33(2), 312-317

Saipanish, R. 2003. "Stress among Medical Students in a Thai Medical School", Medical Teacher, 25(5):502–506.

Sarason, I. G., Pierce, G. R., &Sarason, B. R. (1996). Domains of cognitive interference. In I. G. Sarason, G. R. Pierce, & B. R. Sarason (Eds.), Cognitive Interference Theories, Methods and Findings (pp. 139-152). New Jersey, USA: Lawrence Erlbaum Associates.

Sarason, I. (1984). Stress, anxiety and cognitive interferences: Reactions to tests. Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 46 (4), 929-938.

Sax, L. J., Astin, A. W., Korn, W. S., and Mahoney, K. M 1997. The American Freshman: NationalNorms for 1997. Los Angeles: Higher Education Research Institute, University of Califor-nia at Los Angeles,

Selye H. 1976. Stress in health and disease Butterworth's, Inc. Boston, MA:.

Selye H. 1977. The stress of my life: a scientist's memoirs. Toronto: McClelland and Stewart.

Selye, Hans. 1950. Stress and the General Adaptation Syndrome. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/pmc2038162/pdf/brmedj03603-0003.pdf

Sinha, U. K., V. Sharma and M.K. Nepal, 2001. "Development of a Scale for Assessing Academic Stress: A Preliminary Report", Journal of the Institute of Medicine, 23: 96-102.

Silver, H.K. and A.D. Glicken, 1990. "Medical Student Abuse: Incidence, Severity and Significance", Journal of the American Medical Association, 263(4), 527–532

Stone, A. A, & Neale, J. M. (1984). New measure of daily coping: Development and preliminary results. Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 46, 892-906.

Talib, N., & Zia-ur-Rehman, M. (2012). Academic performance and perceived stress among university students, Educational Research and Review, 7(5): 127-132.

Walton, R. (2002), "A Comparison of Perceived Stress Levels and Coping Styles of Junior and Senior Students in Nursing and Social Work Programs", In Doctor of Education Dissertation College of Graduate Studies, Marshall University.

Walelign, A. (1997). Gender Differences in Perceived Stress and Coping Strategies among Higher Education Students in Ethiopia. Addis Ababa: MA Thesis Unpublished AAU

Wechsler H, Kelly K, Weitzman E, SanGiovanni JP, Seibring M. What colleges are doing about binge drinking: A survey of college presidents. J Am Coll Health. 2000; 48:219–226.

Wechsler H, Lee JE, Hall J, Wagenaar AC, Lee H. Secondhand effects of student alcohol use reported by neighbors of colleges: The role of alcohol outlets. Soc Sci Med. In press.

Yusoff, MSB, Abdul Rahim, AF. &Yaacob, MJ (2010), "Prevalence and Sources of Stress among University Sains Malaysia Medical Students", Malaysian Journal of Medical Sciences, Vol. 17, No.1, pp. 3-11.

# Near East University Institute of Educational Science Department of Psychological Counseling and Guidance

# **Questionnaire filled by students**

# Part one: purpose of the study

The main purpose of this study is to assess the difference in perceived stress level as a function of academic filled of study by compering student in different faculties. Hence, the questionnaire is prepared to gather information about the difference in perceived stress level as a function of academic filled of study through compering students in different faculties. There is no right or wrong answers to the questions; we are just interested with your ideas and opinions. Your response will remain strictly confidential and no one will be able to trace. Your honesty response is very essential for the success of this study.

# Part two: Background information

The following items are about your personal information please read carefully and write answers on a given place.

1.	Sex
2.	Department
3.	Academic year

**Direction:** The following list of statements investigate the perceived stress level as a function of academic filled of study by comparing students in different faculties. Bellow in the table there are statements require how often you find yourself experiencing such common symptoms of stress. Please after carefully reading each statement tike  $(\eth)$  the answer you consider most appropriate.

Mark 1 if you never experience

Mark 2 if youexperience almost never

Mark 3 if you experience some times

Mark 4 if you experience fairly often

Mark 5 if you experience very often

No						
	Statement	1	2	3	4	5
1	Trouble with parents					
2	Trouble with boy/girlfriend					
3	Competing with other student					
4	Friendship conflict					
5	Lack of enough support from others					
6	Change in sleeping habits					
7	Change in eating habits					
8	New responsibilities					
9	Financial difficulties					
10	Decline in personal health					
11	Fear of failing					
12	Increased in class workload					
13	Lower grade than anticipated					
14	All from of assessment (exams, assignments,					

	presentation)
15	Lack of support from instructors
16	Having difficulty understanding academic material
17	Inadequate learning materials
18	Lack of teaching skills of instructors
19	Learning context full completion
20	Change in living environment
21	Adjusting to campus environment
22	lack of campus facilities and equipment
23	Lack of helpfulness from administration staff
24	Lack of communication from university
25	Lack of recreational activities on campus